PROFESSORSHIPS AND NAMINGS
MEETING
BOARD OF VISITORS
UNIVERSITY OF VIRGINIA
OCTOBER 3, 2008
PROFESSORSHIPS AND NAMINGS MEETING
Friday, October 3, 2008
4:00 p.m.
Dome Room, The Rotunda

AGENDA

I. ACTION ITEMS – PROFESSORSHIPS (Mr. Casteen)
   A. Establishment of the Joel B. Piassick Research Professorship in Law
   B. Establishment of the F. Palmer Weber-Smithfield Foods Professorship in Oncology Research in the School of Medicine
   C. Establishment of the Albert M., Kate L., and Peter Kaplan Professorship in Cardiology in the School of Medicine

II. ACTION ITEM – RENAMING PROFESSORSHIP (Mr. Casteen)
   • Renaming the Emerson G. Spies Professorship in Law the Emerson G. Spies Distinguished Professorship in Law

III. ACTION ITEMS – NAMINGS (Mr. Casteen)
   A. The Victor and Sono Elmaleh East Wing of Campbell Hall
   B. The Albert Russel Erskine, Jr. Room in the Harrison Institute/Small Special Collections Library
   C. UVA Hospital Auxiliary Hospitality House
   D. Charles L. Brown Pathway

IV. REPORT ON NAMINGS – (Mr. Casteen)
   A. School of Architecture
      1. Elisabeth Gardiner Chisholm Memorial Passage
      2. Kaitlyn Langstaff Outdoor Classroom
      3. Donley's Auditorium Court
      4. Allied Concrete Graduate Work Terrace
   B. Miller Center
      1. John and Rosemary Galbraith Forum Room
      2. Anne R. Worrell Gallery
      3. Eugene V. and Anne L. Fife Council Room
      4. Frances Massey Dulaney Commons Room

V. REPORT ON THE BOCOCK AND HITZ PUBLIC SERVICE SCHOLARSHIP FUND – (Mr. Casteen)
BOARD MEETING: October 3, 2008

COMMITTEE: Professorships and Namings

AGENDA ITEM: I.A. Establishment of the Joel B. Piassick Research Professorship in Law

BACKGROUND: Raymond J. and Kathryn D. Harbert of Birmingham have made a gift to establish the Joel B. Piassick Research Professorship in Law; the Harberts, who are not alumni of the University, are the parents of John Harbert, a second year student in the College and Mr. Harbert is a Parent Trustee of the College Foundation. He is also Chairman and CEO of Harbert Management Corporation in Birmingham, a firm with which Mr. Piassick has been associated for some years.

Joel B. Piassick took his degree from the Law School in 1965 and practiced law in Atlanta before he joined Harbert Management Corporation in 1998.

Mr. Harbert has enjoyed a long professional and personal relationship with Mr. Piassick, and has come to admire his character, integrity and judgment. He has said that Mr. Piassick embodies the Jeffersonian ideal of the citizen-lawyer.

DISCUSSION: The President will propose the establishment of the Joel B. Piassick Research Professorship in Law.

ACTION REQUIRED: Approval by the Board of Visitors
ESTABLISHMENT OF THE JOEL B. PIASSICK RESEARCH PROFESSORSHIP IN LAW

WHEREAS, Raymond J. and Kathryn D. Harbert of Birmingham have made a generous gift to establish a professorship in the School of Law to honor Joel B. Piassick of Birmingham; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Piassick, who took his J.D. from the Law School in 1965, is a friend and business partner of Mr. Harbert;

RESOLVED, the Board of Visitors establishes the Joel B. Piassick Research Professorship in Law, to be held in the School of Law, and in accordance with the wishes of the Law School, notes the following statement: “The Joel B. Piassick Research Professorship in Law was funded by Raymond J. Harbert to honor his business partner, Joel B. Piassick, a member of the Law School Class of 1965, whom he has cherished for his wise counsel, character, integrity, and judgment, and whose personal loyalty has been the foundation of a long and fruitful friendship for almost two decades. These virtues embody the Jeffersonian ideal of the citizen-lawyer, and shall inform the Law School’s award of the professorship to deserving faculty.”

RESOLVED FURTHER, the Board of Visitors endorses these expressions of the Jeffersonian ideal of the citizen-lawyer, honors Mr. Piassick for embodying this ideal, and thanks Mr. and Mrs. Harbert for their generosity and support.
BACKGROUND: Palmer Weber, a native of Smithfield, was born in 1914. Diagnosed – as it turned out, mistakenly – with tuberculosis, he spent his teen age years in the Blue Ridge Sanatorium in Albemarle County. He took a B.A. from the College in 1934, the M.A. in 1938, and the PhD. in 1940, serving also as an instructor in Philosophy and Economics while he was a graduate student. He went to Washington when he finished the University and joined the New Deal as a member of the "Brain Trust." His years in Washington were an expression of his life-long commitment to racial and social justice.

He moved to New York in 1949 and founded a public relations consulting firm; among his clients was Arthur Garson, father of the University’s Provost. He also began what became a very successful career as an investment analyst and, in due course, was made a Director of Smithfield Foods in his native town. Mr. Weber returned to Charlottesville in 1968 and became involved in a number of University activities and institutions, including the Lawn Society, the Miller Center, and the Carter Woodson Institute. He died in 1986, of cancer, as did his son David. Another son, Michael J. Weber, is Director of the University’s Cancer Center.

Two professorships at the University bear Mr. Weber’s name: the F. Palmer Weber Research Professorship in Civil Liberties and Human Rights in the School of Law, and the F. Palmer Weber Medical Research Professorship in the School of Medicine.

The Smithfield-Luter Foundation is the philanthropic wing of Smithfield Foods, Inc., and its chairman, Joseph W. Luter, III. Mr. Luter and the Foundation pledged $5 million to the Cancer Center in July, 2005, to be used at the discretion of the Dean of the School of Medicine; the gift was made in memory of Mr. Weber. Part of this gift is being used to establish an endowed professorship in oncology research, with emphasis in the field of cancer immunoprevention and immunotherapy. It is proposed that the chair be named in honor of Mr. Weber and Smithfield Foods.
DISCUSSION: The President will propose the establishment of the F. Palmer Weber-Smithfield Foods Professorship in Oncology Research in the School of Medicine.

ACTION REQUIRED: Approval by the Board of Visitors

**ESTABLISHMENT OF THE F. PALMER WEBER-SMITHFIELD FOODS PROFESSORSHIP IN ONCOLOGY RESEARCH IN THE SCHOOL OF MEDICINE**

WHEREAS, F. Palmer Weber, a native of Smithfield, took his B.A., his M.A. and the Ph.D. from the University, completing his studies in 1940; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Weber joined the New Deal in Washington as an expression of his life-long commitment to social and racial justice; and

WHEREAS, after a successful postwar career in New York as a public relations consultant and investment analyst, Mr. Weber returned to Charlottesville in 1968 and was an active supporter of several University institutions until his death, of cancer, in 1986; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Weber was a Director of Smithfield Foods, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, Joseph W. Luter, III, Chairman of Smithfield Foods, and the Smithfield-Luter Foundation have committed $5 million, in memory of Mr. Weber, to the University of Virginia Cancer Center, to be used at the discretion of the Dean of the School of Medicine for the benefit of the Cancer Center; and

WHEREAS, it is proposed to use $2 million of this generous gift to establish an endowed professorship in oncology research, the F. Palmer Weber-Smithfield Foods Professorship in Oncology Research;

RESOLVED, the Board of Visitors establishes the F. Palmer Weber-Smithfield Foods Professorship in Oncology Research, to be held in the Office of the Dean of the School of Medicine; and

RESOLVED FURTHER, the Board honors the memory of F. Palmer Weber and thanks Joseph W. Luter, III and the Smithfield-Luter Foundation for the generous gift which makes this chair possible.
UNIVERSITY OF VIRGINIA
BOARD OF VISITORS AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

BOARD MEETING:          October 3, 2008
COMMITTEE:              Professorships and Namings
AGENDA ITEM:            I.C. Establishment of the Albert M., Kate L., and Peter Kaplan Professorship in Cardiology in the School of Medicine

BACKGROUND: Dr. Peter R. Kaplan, an alumnus of Princeton University, did an internship and a residency in Internal Medicine at the University after taking his M.D. from the University of Pennsylvania in 1964. He was Chief Resident under Dr. Ed Hook and held a Fellowship in Cardiology in 1972 under Dr. Lockhart McGuire and Dr. Julian Beckwith - all three now deceased but of almost legendary memory in the School of Medicine. Dr. Kaplan served in Korea as a Medical Officer and after finishing his training at the University in 1972, established a practice in cardiology in Nashville - when he retired, he was director of the most active clinical practice of cardiology in Tennessee.

He developed the Heart Center at St. Thomas Hospital in Nashville and served on many community boards in the city.

Dr. Kaplan in 1998 agreed to fund a professorship in Cardiology at the School of Medicine. By subsequent agreement, the chair is to include the names of his parents, Albert M. and Kate L. Kaplan. In addition to providing for this professorship, Dr. Kaplan was a generous supporter of the Health System, the Jefferson Scholars Foundation, and the Women’s Center.

Dr. Kaplan died on March 2, 2006.

The proposed chair is to be held in the Division of Cardiology in the Department of Internal Medicine.

DISCUSSION: The President will propose the establishment of the Albert M., Kate L., and Peter Kaplan Professorship in Cardiology in the School of Medicine.

ACTION REQUIRED: Approval by the Board of Visitors
ESTABLISHMENT OF THE ALBERT M., KATE L., AND PETER KAPLAN PROFESSORSHIP IN CARDIOLOGY IN THE SCHOOL OF MEDICINE

    WHEREAS, Dr. Peter R. Kaplan, after taking his M.D. from the University of Pennsylvania, did a Residency in Internal Medicine at the University of Virginia, including one year as Chief Resident; and

    WHEREAS, Dr. Kaplan then moved to Nashville where he established what became the most active clinical practice of cardiology in Tennessee; and

    WHEREAS, Dr. Kaplan developed the Heart Center at St. Thomas Hospital in Nashville, for which he received great recognition; and

    WHEREAS, Dr. Kaplan in 1998 agreed to fund a professorship in Cardiology at the University, the chair to bear the names of his parents as well as his own;

    RESOLVED, the Board of Visitors establishes the Albert M., Kate L., and Peter R. Kaplan Professorship in Cardiology, to be held in the Division of Cardiology in the Department of Internal Medicine of the School of Medicine, and honors the generosity and distinguished memory of Dr. Kaplan, whose gift made this chair possible.
UNIVERSITY OF VIRGINIA
BOARD OF VISITORS AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

BOARD MEETING: October 3, 2008

COMMITTEE: Professorships and Namings

AGENDA ITEM: II. Renaming of Professorship:
Approval to rename the Emerson G. Spies Professorship in Law the Emerson G. Spies Distinguished Professorship in Law

BACKGROUND: The Emerson G. Spies Professorship in Law was established in 1985 with gifts from students, friends and family of Mr. Spies. Emerson Spies joined the faculty of the Law School in 1946, retired in 1985 and died in 1990. He was Dean from 1976 to 1980, and his achievements and contributions as a citizen of the University were recognized when he received the Thomas Jefferson Award in 1984.

Since the creation of the Spies Chair twenty three years ago, subsequent gifts from Mr. Spies' widow, Julia Spies Dunstan, from a former faculty colleague and from former students, have increased the funding to the point that the Chair may now be called a Distinguished Professorship.

The renamed Chair thus would be called the Emerson G. Spies Distinguished Professorship in Law.

DISCUSSION: The President will propose the renaming of the Emerson G. Spies Professorship in Law the Emerson G. Spies Distinguished Professorship in Law.

ACTION REQUIRED: Approval by the Board of Visitors
APPROVAL TO RENAME THE EMERSON G. SPIES PROFESSORSHIP IN LAW THE EMERSON G. SPIES DISTINGUISHED PROFESSORSHIP IN LAW

WHEREAS, Emerson G. Spies joined the faculty of the School of Law in 1946; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Spies had a most distinguished career, serving as Dean from 1976 to 1980 and as Mary and Daniel Loughran Professor until his retirement in 1985; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Spies received the Thomas Jefferson Award in 1984; and

WHEREAS, the Emerson G. Spies Professorship in Law was established in 1985, five years before Mr. Spies’ death; and

WHEREAS, subsequent gifts from Mr. Spies’ widow, Julia Spies Dunstan, from a former faculty colleague and from former students, have augmented the endowment for the Spies Chair to the point that it meets the University’s requirements for a Distinguished Professorship;

RESOLVED, the Board of Visitors renames the Emerson G. Spies Professorship in Law the Emerson G. Spies Distinguished Professorship in Law, to be held in the School of Law; and

RESOLVED FURTHER, the Board honors the memory of Emerson G. Spies and the distinguished contributions he made to the life of the University, and thanks Mrs. Dunstan and the friends of Mr. Spies whose generosity has made this naming possible.
UNIVERSITY OF VIRGINIA
BOARD OF VISITORS AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

BOARD MEETING: October 3, 2008

COMMITTEE: Professorships and Namings

AGENDA ITEM: III.A. Naming the Victor and Sono Elmaleh East Wing of Campbell Hall

BACKGROUND: The new east wing of the School of Architecture, to be dedicated later this month, will be the new face of the School and will shift the main entrance from a confusing place on the north side of Campbell Hall to a point facing Rugby Road on the east side. It is a very handsome addition to the building and will house exhibition space and rooms for reviewing student work, as well as serving as the principal entrance to the School.

The School of Architecture proposes that this structure be named the Victor and Sono Elmaleh East Wing in honor of two generous and long time benefactors of the School.

Victor Elmaleh was born in Morocco in 1918 and immigrated to the United States with his parents as a small child a few years later. He took a B.A. in Architecture from the University in 1942 and practiced architecture for several years before embarking on a career in international trade. He is now the Chairman and CEO of World-Wide Holdings Corporation in New York, a firm which sells and develops commercial real estate nationwide. He is an accomplished artist and his abstract watercolors and collages have been shown in a number of galleries. An exhibition of his work is on display this month in Campbell Hall.

Mr. Elmaleh commissioned an hour-long documentary, “Mr. Jefferson and His University,” as a commemoration of the 250th anniversary of Jefferson’s birth, and he and Mrs. Elmaleh have been generous patrons of the arts in New York.

Mr. Elmaleh’s wife, Sono Osato Elmaleh is a former ballerina, having danced with the Ballets Russes de Monte Carlo and the American Ballet Theatre, as well as on Broadway. She founded the Sono Osato Scholarship Program in Graduate Studies to help support former dancers in graduate studies in the professions as well as in the liberal arts.
DISCUSSION: The President will propose the naming of the Victor and Sono Elmaleh East Wing of Campbell Hall.

ACTION REQUIRED: Approval by the Board of Visitors

NAMING OF THE VICTOR AND SONO ELMALEH EAST WING OF CAMPBELL HALL

WHEREAS, Victor Elmaleh, an alumnus of the School of Architecture, and his wife Sono Osato Elmaleh, are well known artists as well as generous benefactors of the University; and

WHEREAS, Sono Osato Elmaleh was a ballerina who danced with such major companies as the Ballets Russes de Monte Carlo and the American Ballet Theatre, and who has continued her interest in dance with the Sono Osato Scholarship Program in Graduate Studies, to support former dancers in graduate work; and

WHEREAS, Victor Elmaleh is not only a successful businessman but an accomplished artist whose collages and abstract watercolors have been shown in a number of galleries; and

WHEREAS, Mr. and Mrs. Elmaleh are patrons of a full spectrum of the arts in New York and elsewhere; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Elmaleh's love of the University has been manifested not only in his benefactions to the School of Architecture, but in his commemoration of the 250th anniversary of the birth of Thomas Jefferson by his commissioning of the documentary film, "Mr. Jefferson and the University;" and

WHEREAS, a gift from Mr. and Mrs. Elmaleh has provided for the construction of the East Wing at Campbell Hall, a structure which will be the new main entrance to the School of Architecture;

RESOLVED, the Board of Visitors names the East Wing of Campbell Hall the Victor and Sono Elmaleh East Wing, and expresses its thanks to Mr. and Mrs. Elmaleh for their unwavering support of the School of Architecture, and for this and their other generous benefactions to the University of Virginia.
UNIVERSITY OF VIRGINIA  
BOARD OF VISITORS AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

BOARD MEETING: October 3, 2008

COMMITTEE: Professorships and Namings

AGENDA ITEM: III.B. Naming the Albert Russel Erskine, Jr. Room in the Harrison Institute/Small Special Collections Library

BACKGROUND: Albert Russel Erskine, Jr. was born in Memphis in 1911 and took degrees from Southwestern College there and from Vanderbilt University. A friend of several of the great literary figures at Vanderbilt in those days, he taught at Louisiana State University and worked both for The Southern Review there and for the LSU Press. He later worked for The Saturday Review of Literature and for several of the important New York publishing houses, most notably Random House. In this capacity, he worked with a number of well known writers, including William Faulkner, Robert Penn Warren, Eudora Welty and Karl Shapiro. He was noted as a major New York editor and publisher, as well as a scholar.

Mr. Erskine died in 1993.

Mr. Erskine’s widow, Marisa B. Erskine, and his daughter, Silvia F. Erskine – who took two degrees from the School of Architecture – have made important gifts of his books and papers to the University. In recognition of their gifts and Mr. Erskine’s distinguished contributions to American letters, the Library proposes to name one of the scholar’s studies in the Harrison/Small Library the Albert Russel Erskine, Jr. Room in the Harrison Institute/Small Special Collections Library.

DISCUSSION: The President will propose the naming of the Albert Russel Erskine, Jr. Room in the Harrison Institute/Small Special Collections Library.

ACTION REQUIRED: Approval by the Board of Visitors
NAMING OF THE ALBERT RUSSEL ERSKINE, JR. ROOM IN THE
HARRISON INSTITUTE/SMALL SPECIAL COLLECTIONS LIBRARY

WHEREAS, the late Albert Russel Erskine, Jr., born in
Memphis and educated at Southwestern College and Vanderbilt
University, was an important figure for many years in the New
York publishing world, and was known as a gifted editor and
scholar; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Erskine’s widow, Marisa B. Erskine, and his
daughter, Silvia F. Erskine, an alumna of the School of
Architecture, have made important donations of Mr. Erskine’s
books and papers to the University; and

WHEREAS, in recognition of this gift, the University
Library proposes that a scholar’s study in the Harrison
Institute/Small Special Collections Library be named in Mr.
Erskine’s honor;

RESOLVED, the Board of Visitors names the Albert Russel
Erskine, Jr. Room in the Harrison Institute/Small Special
Collections Library, and thanks Mr. Erskine’s widow and their
daughter for their support and their generous gift.
UNIVERSITY OF VIRGINIA
BOARD OF VISITORS AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

BOARD MEETING:  October 3, 2008

COMMITTEE:  Professorships and Namings

AGENDA ITEM:  III.C. Naming the UVA Hospital Auxiliary Hospitality House

BACKGROUND:  The University of Virginia Hospital Auxiliary in 1981 opened a hospitality house, which is to say lodging for patients' families who have come from out of town and who could not otherwise afford it. The Auxiliary's hospitality house has moved several times over the years, each time relocating to larger quarters. As services expanded and more space was needed, the Medical Center took over management of the enterprise and began supporting operating expenses. The Hospital Auxiliary continues to support the hospitality house and in fact has made it its principal benefaction: the Auxiliary has donated more than $1 million since the house was established in 1981, and it has pledged an annual donation of $67,000 over the next four years to support the new hospitality house on 14th Street.

The hospitality house in the early 1990s was named the Alex Sawyer Hospitality House in memory of Mr. Sawyer, who was the Hospital Administrator for 18 years and who was a strong supporter of the concept of the house.

Because of the Auxiliary's role in establishing the hospitality house, it is proposed that it be named the University of Virginia Hospital Auxiliary Hospitality House. Mr. Sawyer, however, will not be forgotten: a garden will be developed on the Hospitality House property and named in his memory, and his painted portrait will be hung at the main entrance of the new building.

DISCUSSION:  The President will propose the naming of the University of Virginia Hospital Auxiliary Hospitality House.

ACTION REQUIRED:  Approval by the Board of Visitors
NAMING OF THE UNIVERSITY OF VIRGINIA HOSPITAL AUXILIARY
HOSPITALITY HOUSE

WHEREAS, the University of Virginia Hospital Auxiliary in 1981 established a hospitality house for the lodging of out-of-town relatives of patients in the Hospital; and

WHEREAS, the hospitality house has grown both in size and in the service it offers since 1981, much of it financed by gifts from the Hospital Auxiliary; and

WHEREAS, the Hospital Auxiliary has made a commitment of substantial annual support of the new hospitality house on 14th Street; and

WHEREAS, the current name of the facility is the Alex Sawyer Hospitality House, in memory of the Hospital Administrator who supported the concept of the hospitality house over many years;

RESOLVED, the Board of Visitors directs that the hospitality house be named the University of Virginia Hospital Auxiliary Hospitality House, and that the garden to be developed on the property be named in memory of Mr. Sawyer; and

RESOLVED FURTHER, the Board expresses its appreciation to the Hospital Auxiliary for its efforts over the years on behalf of patients’ families and for its generous and continuing support of the Hospitality House.
BACKGROUND: The late Charles L. Brown was a most distinguished alumnus of the School of Engineering. He took a degree in Electrical Engineering in 1943 and after service in the Navy during the Second World War, joined AT&T. He rose through the ranks to become CEO and Chairman of the Board from 1979 until 1986: AT&T at the time was one of the largest companies in the world.

Mr. Brown was a Member of the Board of Visitors, and of the Board of the Trustees of the Alumni Endowment Fund; he was the Chair of the University’s New York Area Campaign in 1984 and Vice Chairman of the University’s Capital Campaign which ended in 2000. His interests and support extended over a range of endeavors at the University, including the Engineering School, the College, the School of Architecture, the Shannon Center for Advanced Studies, and the Jefferson Scholars Foundation. His benefactions were always thoughtful and carefully considered.

Mr. Brown died in 2003.

Mr. Brown’s widow, Anne Lee Saunders Brown, has endowed, in his name, both the Department of Electrical and Computer Engineering at the Engineering School and the University’s Science and Technology Library. Recently, she has given funds for the construction of a brick walkway in the Darden Court at the Engineering School, a space at the center of the School, adjoining Thornton Hall, which is used for ceremonial occasions - such as the conferring of diplomas at Finals - and is a true crossroads in the daily coming and going of faculty and students. Mrs. Brown’s gift includes funds for landscaping Darden Court.

It is proposed that the walkway be named the Charles L. Brown Pathway.
DISCUSSION: The President will propose the naming of the Charles L. Brown Pathway.

ACTION REQUIRED: Approval by the Board of Visitors

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>NAMING OF THE CHARLES L. BROWN PATHWAY</th>
</tr>
</thead>
</table>

WHEREAS, the late Charles L. Brown, who was a native of Richmond and who took a B.S. in Electrical Engineering from the School of Engineering in 1943, was one of the most distinguished alumni of the University of his era; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Brown was not only a generous benefactor of a number of institutions at the University, but rendered great service, notably as a Member of the Board of Visitors and as an active and effective volunteer and executive in two of the University’s Capital Campaigns; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Brown’s widow, Anne Lee Saunders Brown, also has been a generous friend and benefactor of the University; and

WHEREAS, Mrs. Brown has given funds for the construction of a brick walkway in the Darden Court at the School of Engineering, and has provided for landscaping of the area;

RESOLVED, the Board of Visitors names the new pathway the Charles L. Brown Pathway and directs that a suitable plaque be placed to mark this naming. The wording of the plaque shall read as follows:

This pathway is in memory of

**CHARLES L. BROWN**

1921 – 2003

Electrical Engineering 1943

Member, University of Virginia’s Board of Visitors 1986 - 1990

Vice Chair, Campaign for the University of Virginia 1993 - 2000

RESOLVED FURTHER, the Board thanks Anne Lee Saunders Brown for this latest instance of her generosity and support.
The President will report on a group of namings. No action by the Board on these is required, but the namings will be entered on the Minutes as a matter of record.

Elizabeth Gardiner Chisholm Memorial Passage

The Chisholm Passage is the exterior east passage of the Campbell Hall landscape additions. It is a gift of Nathan and Cynthia Saint-Amand of New York whose daughter, Elisabeth, is an alumna of the School of Architecture. Elizabeth Gardiner Chisholm was the mother of Mrs. Saint-Amand.

Kaitlyn Langstaff Outdoor Classroom

The Langstaff Outdoor Classroom is, as its name suggests, one of the outdoor classrooms built as part of the Campbell Hall renovations. It is the gift of Leslie Feeney Baily, an alumna of the School of Architecture, in memory of the niece of Kathryn Louise Langstaff, a classmate of Ms. Baily.

Donley's Auditorium Court

Donley's Auditorium Court is part of the Campbell Hall renovations and is the gift of Mac M. Donley, President and CEO of Donley's, the firm contracted for the Campbell Hall construction work.

Allied Concrete Graduate Work Terrace

The Allied Concrete Graduate Work Terrace is another element in the Campbell Hall renovations. It is the gift of Joseph F. Lorber, III, who took a B.A. from the University in 1972, and the Allied Concrete Company. Mr. Lorber is the President of Allied.
The President will report on a group of namings. No action by the Board on these is required, but the namings will be entered on the Minutes as a matter of record.

John and Rosemary Galbraith Forum Room

The Forum Room at the Miller Center was built in 1991 and has heretofore been unnamed. The naming honors Mr. and Mrs. Galbraith who have given major support to the Miller Center; Mr. Galbraith also has served on the Center's Governing Council and Foundation Board.

Anne R. Worrell Gallery

The Gallery adjoins the Forum Room. Mrs. Worrell, of Charlottesville, has been a principal supporter of the Miller Center and serves on the Miller Center Foundation Board.

Eugene V. and Anne L. Fife Council Room

The Council Room is on the first floor of the original building of the Miller Center, Faulkner House. The name honors the significant contributions of Mr. and Mrs. Fife to the Miller Center: in addition to gifts, Mr. Fife has been Chair of the Governing Council and a Director of the Miller Center Foundation Board. He was head of the operating board which oversaw the day-to-day operations of the Center from 2002 until Governor Baliles became the Director of the Miller Center in 2006.

Frances Massey Dulaney Commons Room

The Commons Room is on the ground level of the J. Wilson Newman Pavilion at the Miller Center. Mrs. Dulaney has given significant support to the Center.
The President will report on the Bocock and Hitz Public Service Scholarship Fund, established recently to support students who are pursuing studies leading to careers in public service. No action is required of the Board.

Frederic Scott Bocock of Richmond and Frederick P. and Mary Buford Bocock Hitz of Charlottesville have made generous pledges to establish a scholarship fund to support students in the Batten School who intend to pursue careers in public service. Mr. Bocock, a 1954 alumnus of the College, and Mr. Hitz, an alumnus of Princeton University and the Harvard Law School, are brothers-in-law and have long been strong and vocal advocates of public service.

Mr. Bocock is Vice Chairman of Scott & Stringfellow, the Richmond financial firm founded by his family, and is a grandson of Frederic Scott, who was Rector of the University and who gave the money for the building of Scott Stadium. Mr. Bocock’s father, John Holmes Bocock, was well known both as a student at the University, where he was a member of the Seven Society, and as a lawyer in Richmond.

Mr. Hitz is married to Mr. Bocock’s younger sister, Mary Buford Bocock. His public service has included stints in the Central Intelligence Agency, the Department of State and the Department of Defense. Most recently, he was Inspector-General of the CIA. He has published two books on espionage and he has offered extremely popular courses on the history of espionage in the College and in the Law School, as well as at Princeton, and he lectures frequently on the subject, always – if it is a student audience – putting in a plea to his listeners to consider careers in public service. Mrs. Hitz has published a fascinating memoir of her mother, Elizabeth Scott Bocock, who was a well known figure in Richmond.

The Bocock and Hitz Scholarship Fund is the first gift – outside of Mr. Frank Batten’s establishing gift – to be made in support of the Batten School.
In making the gift, Mr. Bocock and Mr. and Mrs. Hitz have stated that the Bocock and Hitz Public Service Scholarship Fund "honors members of the Bocock and Hitz families, their respective affiliations with the University of Virginia and their careers and beliefs which strongly manifest a commitment to public service. Specifically, this Fund honors Willis Henry Bocock, John Holmes Bocock, Bessie Bocock Carter and Frederic Scott Bocock as well as Frederick Porter Hitz, his wife and Frederic Bocock's sister, Mary Buford Bocock Hitz, and Judge William Hitz."